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SAH NOTICES

1992 Annual Meeting - Albuguerque,
New Mexico (April 1-5). Christopher
Mead, University of New Mexico, will
serve as focal chair of the meeting. Head-
quarters for the meeting will be the Dou-
bletree Hotel. A program announcement
has been sent to the membership. Mem-
bers are reminded that this program
should be brought with them to the meet-
ing in April, Please note cut-off dates for
reserving rooms at the Doubletree Hotel.

1993 Annual Meeting - Charleston,
South Carolina (April 14-18). Franklin
Toker, University of Piitsburgh, will be
general chairman of the meeting. Ken-
neth Severens, University of Southern
Maine, will serve as local chairman,
Headquarters will be The Mills House
Hotel. A call for papers will be published
in the April Newsletter.

1992 Foreign Tour - City and Country
Architecture in Sweden: 250 Years
{May 28-June 14). Guy Walton, New
York University, will lead this remarkable
tour of Sweden’s cities, castles, manors
and villages of the countryside. It will
feature Swedish architecture from the
founding of the present kingdom by
Gustaf Vasa in the 1520s to the present
day.

It is a pleasure to announce that this
year, for the first time, a scholarship will
be available for a member of the SAH to
join the Society’s Foreign Study Tour.
Generous donations from Skanska (USA)
and IKEA have made this possible. Ap-
plicants should be Ph.D. candidates or re-
cent Ph.D. degree holders. A complete
application should contain a statement
explaining the relevance to his/her studies
of this tour and a paragraph describing
why financial support by the SAH is nec-
essary. This letter should be accompanied
by two letters of recommendation and a

recent academic transcript. All of these
should be sent to the Society of Architec-
tural Historians, 1232 Pine Street,
Philadelphia, PA 19107-5944. Deadline
for submissions is March 31.

A second grant has been received by
the Society from the Swedish Institute
(Stockholm) to enable Lars Sjoberg, a
noted restorer of historic houses and a cu-
rator of the Royal Castles’ Collections
Department of the Nationalmuseum in
Stockholm, to accompany the tour. Fuor-
thermore, Ms. Mari Ann Walz, head of
the Institute’s Department for Study Vis-
its and Seminars is helping to organize a
series of special events during the tour,
including meetings with prominent
Swedish architects, lectures, etc. Tour
brochures are now available from the So-
ciety’s office.

1992 Domestic Tour - Connecticut
River Valley {August 22-29). The tour
leader will be Kenneth Hafertepe of His-
toric Deerfield. The tour will begin in
Hartford and will proceed north along
the Connecticut River to Hanover, New
Hampshire. Cities to be visited will in-
clude Middletown, Holyoke, Ambherst,
Northampton, Historic Deerfield, Wood-
stock, and Hanover.

To enable an outstanding student to
participate in this tour, the Society will
hold a competition for a student scholar-
ship. To be eligible, a student must be en-
gaged in graduate work in architecture or
architectural history, city planning or
urban history, landscape or the history of
landscape design. Qualified students—
who must be SAH members—should
write the SAH office (1232 Pine Street,
Philadelphia, PA 19107-5944) for an ap-
plication. Completed applications with
required vitae and a minimum of two de-
partmental recommendations, should be
returned to the SAH office by May 15,
1982,

CONFERENCES AND
SYMPOSIUMS

The Cooper-Hewiit Museum and Par-
sons School of Design Masters Pro-
gram in the History of the Decorative
Arts are sponsoring a symposium at the
Cooper-Hewitt Museum on March 20-21,
1992, where graduate students from a
number of American universities will
present their latest research on Renais-
sance and later decorative arts of Europe
and the United States. Philippa Glanville,
Head of the Metalwork Department, Vic-
toria and Albert Museumn, will deliver the
keynote address on the achievements of
English and American women silver-
smiths. Reservations to attend the sympo-
sium are required by March 9 at (212)
860-6344/6345.

The American Architectural Founda-
tion {(AAF) and the Pacific Preservation
Consortium of the University of Hawaii
will co-sponsor a national conference on
“Blueprint for Adaptive Use/Restoration
Success: Historic Buildings as Museums,”
March 23-27, 1992, at the Old Archive
Building on the lolani Palace grounds in
Honolulu, Hawaii. The conference, to be
conducted by experienced restoration ar-
chitects and historians from Hawaii and
the West Coast, will explore the 50-year
history of historic structures reporis: what
they are, why they are needed, the process
that creates them, their formats, and the
various philosophical approaches related
to them. For program information, con-
tact; William J. Murtagh, Director, Pacific
Preservation Consortium, University of
Hawaii, Honolulu, (808) 956-8570, FAX
(808) 956-4733, For registration informa-
tion, contact: Lonnie Hovey, ATA, Preser-
vation Coordinater at the Octagon, Wash-
ington, D.C., (202) 638-3221.

The Temple Hoyne Buell Center for
the Study of American Architecture
has announced its 1992 series of “Buell
Talks on American Architecture,” which
will be held on Saturday, April 25, 1992,



at Columbia University. This event will
bring together a select group of doctoral
students working under the broad rubric
of American architectural history. The
program is structured to strengthen the
intellectual and academic qualifications
of these emerging scholars by providing a
forum for collegial discussion of their
work, as well as by associating them col-
lectively and individually with some of
the finest teaching scholars in American
architectural history.

Partners for Sacred Places and Jubilee
Baltimore, Inc. are sponsoring Sacred
Trusts V, the fifth national conference on
the care of older churches and syna-
gogues, to be held May 6-9, 1992, in Bal-
timore. The program, which will bring to-
gether clergy, lay leaders, denominational
staff, preservationists, community ac-
tivists, and building professionals, is or-
ganized around three central tracks: one
focusing on building repair, maintenance,
and management; the second on the his-
torical and contemporary role of the reli-
gious institution and its buildings in sus-
taining community life; and the third on
fundraising strategies for capital projects.
A special theme will emphasize how un-
derutilized space in religious properties
can be better used to benefit both congre-
gations and the greater community. For
more information contact: Partners for
Sacred Places, 1616 Walnut Street, Suite
2210, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103,
(215) 546-1288.

The Aga Khan Program for Islamic
Architecture at Harvard University and
the Massachusetts Institute of Technolo-
gy are sponsoring a symposium on Pre-
Modern Islamic Palace Architecture, to
be held May 15-16, 1992, at the Harvard
Graduate School of Design, Gund Hall.
For more information contact: Professor
Gulru Necipoglu, Sackler Museum, 485
Broadway, Cambridge, Massachusetts
02138, (617) 495-0872/23535.

The Association for Gravestone
Studies will hold its fifteenth annual
conference at Union College in Schenec-
tady, N.Y., on June 25-28, 1992, It will
bring together those interested in historic
gravestones for scholarly lectures, guided
cemetery tours, restoration workshops,
and exhibits. For more information con-
tact: Association for Gravestone Studies,
30 Elm Street, Worcester, Massachusetts
01609, (508) 831-7753.

CALL FOR PAPERS

The Society for Commercial Arche-
ology is seeking proposals for papers to
be presented at a conference, “Driving In
and Moving Out: Auto Mobility in Post-
war America,” to be held August 6-8,
1992, in Los Angeles. The conference
will examine the transformation of the
American cultural landscape and built
environment after World War 11, empha-
sizing the roles played by the automobile
and the highway. The postwar “Ameri-
can Dream” embodied itself in an ani-
mated built environment that expressed
the freedom and mobility of the times.
An enthusiastic reliance on the automo-
bile, the promise of a limitless future,
and a fascination with science and “mod-
ern” living all combined to impart a
unique look and feel to structures, neigh-
borhoods, and cities. Papers exploring
this transformation in Southern Califor-
nia are especially welcome. Two copies
of an abstract of no more than 400 words
should be submitted by February 28,
1992, to: Rebecca Shiffer, Society for
Commercial Archeology, P.O. Box 1948,
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19105-1948,
(215) 732-4616.

Papers are sought for the 18th annual
Byzantine Studies Conference to be
held October 8-11, 1992, at the Universi-
ty of Illinois (Champaign-Urbana). One-
page abstracts must be submitted by
March 15, 1992, to: Alice-Mary Talbot,
Program Chair, Dumbarton Oaks, 1703
32nd Street, N.W., Washington, D.C.
20007.

The tenth annual conference of the
South Eastern Society of Architectural
Historians {SESAH) is to be held Octo-
ber 8-10, 1992, in Charlotte, North Car-
olina. Sessions will be organized around
the following areas: methodology and
theory of history, history of technology,
vernacular issues, urban and landscape
history, American architecture, European
architecture, preservation, gender and
ethnic issues in architecture, and open
sessions. Scholars and graduate students
are invited to submit three copies of a
250-word abstract and curriculum vitae,
for juried review, by March 15, 1992, to:
SESAH 92 Conference, College of Ar-
chitecture, UNC-Charlotte, Charlotte,
N.C. 28223.

The Society for Utopian Studies is
seeking papers for its 17th annual meet-
ing to be held November 19-22, 1992, in
Baltimore, Maryland. The Society is an
international, interdisciplinary organiza-
tion devoted to the study of both literary
and experimental utopias. Proposals are
due no later than June 15, 1992, to: Lise
Leibacher, Department of French and
Italian, University of Arizona, Tucson,
Arizona 85721, (602) 621-7350 or (602)
299-8727.

FELLOWSHIPS

The Cooper-Hewitt Museum has an-
nounced the Peter Krueger/Christie’s
Fellowship for a scholar with the M.A.
degree to undertake a research project in
a field collected by the Cooper-Hewitt:
drawings and prints, textiles, wall-cover-
ings, European and American decorative
arts. The fellow will conduct research on
the hisfher project, working with the mu-
seum’s research staff for guidance. In ad-
dition, the fellow will be assigned to a
curaterial department and will assist in
daily curatorial duties. The stipend will
be $15,000 for a maximum of twelve
months with a $2,000 travel allowance.
Application deadline: March 15, 1992.
For further information and an applica-
tion, contact: Caroline Mortimer, Cooper-
Hewitt Museum, 2 East 91st Street, New
York, N.Y. 10128.

Historic Deerfield is secking under-
graduate applicants for its Summer Fel-
lowship Program in Early American His-
tory and Material Culture. Students will
undertake an intensive examination of
early American history, architecture, dec-
orative arts, museum interpretation, and
museum operations, through lectures and
field trips to other museums. Fellows will
also undertake a research project utilizing
the rich museum and library collections
of Historic Deerfield. Each fellow is
awarded a $4100 stipend, which covers
tuition, books, and field trip expenses.
Room and board for nine weeks (mid-
June through mid-August) is $1400; fi-
nancial aid is available. For a fellowship
brochure and application contact: Dr.
Kenneth Hafertepe, Director of Academic
Programs, Historic Deerfield, Inc., Deer-
field, Massachusetts 01342, (413) 774-
5581. Completed applications will be re-
viewed after April 1, 1992.

SAH NEWSLETTER



BOOKS
February 1992

50 years of the National Buildings Record 1941-1991, London:
Royal Commission on the Historical Monuments of England, 1991.
68 p. 1.14.95. ISBN (-904929-27-2

Adams, William Howard. Nature perfected : gardens through
history. New York: Abbeville Press, 1991. 356 p. $49.95. ISBN
0-89659-919-1

Agrest, Diana. Architecture from without : theoretical framings for
a critical practice of architecture. Cambridge, MA: MIT Press,
1991, 203 p. $30.00. ISBN 0-262-01115-8

Allibone, Jill. George Devey architect 1820-1886. Cambridge, Eng.:
The Butterworth Press, 1991. 189 p. 1L25.00. ISBN 0-7188-2785-6

Architekten Schweger + Partner : Bauten und Projekte. Stuttgart:
Hatje, 1991. 320 p. ISBN 3-7757-0304-7

Bachler, Hagen and Monika Schlechte. Fiihrer zim Barock in Dres-
den. Dortmund: Harenberg, 1991, 230 p. DM34.80. ISBN 3-88379-
611-5

Bechmann, Roland. Villard de Honnecourt : la pensée technique au
Xlille si¢cle et su communication. Paris: Picard, 1991. 384 p. F370.
ISBN 2-7084-0367-2

Benevolo, Leonardo. La cattura dell’infinito. Rome: Laterza, 1991.
137 p. L25000. ISBN 88-420-3746-X

Berlin und seine Bauten : Teil V, Band C—Schulen. Berlin: Ernst &
Sohn, 1991. 471 p. ISBN 3-433-02205-4

Bianca, Stefano. Hofhaus und Paradiesgarten : Architektur und
Lebensformen in der islamischen Welt. Munich: C.H. Beck, 1991.
305 p. DM83. ISBN 3-406-34919-6

Blair, John, ed. Saint Frideswide’s Monastery at Oxford : archaeo-
logical and architectural studies. Gloucester ; Wolfeboro Fall, NH:
A. Sutton, 1991. 285 p. L35.00. ISBN 0-86299-773-9

Boboli 90 : atti del convegno internazionale di studi per la salva-
guardia e la valorizzazione del giardino. Florence: Edifer, 1991. 2
vols. 1.95000

Borsi, Franco and Paolo Portoghesi. Horra. New York: Rizzoli,
1991. 413 p. Trans. of Vicror Horta. $85.00. ISBN 0-8478-1290-1

Breeze, Carla. L.A. deco. New York: Rizzoli, 1991. 96 p. ISBN
0-8478-1434-3

Bruegmann, Robert. Holabird & Roche, Holabird & Root : an illus-
trated catalog of works { in cooperation with the Chicago Historical
Society. New York: Garland Pubi., 1991. 3 vols. $750.00. ISBN
0-8240-3974-2

Les chantiers de la Renaissance : actes du colloques tenus & Tours
en 1983-1984, Paris: Picard, 1991. 287 p. (De architectura) F320.
ISBN 2-7084-0406-7

Chernikhov, lakov Georgievich. Konstruktion der Architektur und
Maschinenformen. Berlin: Birkhauser, 1991. 232 p. + 40 pls.
DMI18. Reprint of 1931 ed. ISBN 3-7643-2497-X

Colquhoun, Ian and Peter G. Fauset. Housing design in practice.
Essex: Longman Scientific & Technical, 1991. 365 p. L85.00. ISBN
0-582-06360-4

Cuff, Dana. Architecture : the story of practice. Cambridge, MA:
MIT Press, 1991. 306 p. $24.95. ISBN 0-262-03175-2

Delehanty, Randolph. fn the Victorian style. San Francisco: Chroni-
cle Books, 1991. 180 p. $35.00, $22.95. ISBN 0-87701-750-6, 0-
87701-741-1

Denyer, Susan. Traditional buildings and life in the Lake District.
London: Victor Gollancz, 1991, 208 p. L18.99. ISBN 0-575-04552-3

Dutten, Thomas A., ed. Voices in architectural education : cultural
politics and pedagogy. New York: Bergin & Garvey, 1991, 295 p.
(Critical studies in education and culture) ISBN 0-89789-253-4

Emmerson, Roger. Winners & losers : Scotland and the architec-
tural competition : an exhibition for the Edinburgh International
Festival, RIAS Gallery, August 12 to September 1991. Edinburgh:
RIAS Gallery, 1991. 43 p. L2.95. ISBN 1-873190-03-4

Farel, Alain. Le troisiéme labyrinthe : architecture et complexite.
Montreuil/Bois: Les Editions de la Passion, 1991. 230 p. F169.
ISBN 2-906229-12-1

Fladmark, I.M., et al. Tomaorrow’s architectural heritage: landscape
and buildings in the countryside. Edinburgh: Mainstream Publ.,
1991. 192 p. L14.99. ISBN 1-85158-378-5

Forsthuber, Sabine, Moderne Raumkunst ; Wiener Ausstel-
lungsbauten von 1898 bis 1914, Vienna; Picus, 1991. 205 p. ISBN
3-85452-112-X

Frank O. Gehry : projets en Europe : 13 mars/10 juin 1991, Paris:
Centre de Creation Industrielle, Centre Georges Pompidou, 1991.
unpaged. F95. ISBN 2-85850-568-3

Frei, Hans. Konkrete Architektur? Uber Max Bill als Architeks.
Baden: Verlag Lars Muller, 1991. 319 p. DM34. ISBN 3-906700-
22-4

Gandelsonas, Mario. The wrban fext. Cambridge, MA: MIT Press,
1991. 95 p. $14.95. ISBN 0-262-57084-X

Germany, Lisa. Harwell Hamilton Harris. Austin: Univ. of Texas
Press, 1991. 252 p. ISBN 0-292-73043-8

The Getty Center : design process [ Harold Williams ...Los Angeles:
J. Paul Getty Trust, 1991. 144 p, $40.00. ISBN 0-89236-210-3

Gradidge, Roderick, The Surrey stvle. Kingston upon Thames, Sur-
rey: The Surrey Historic Buildings, 1991. 144 p. L15.95. ISBN 0-
9517022-0-3

Griswold, Mac K. and Eleanor Weller. The golden age of American
gardens : proud owners, private estates, 16890-1940. New York:
Abrams, 1991. 408 p. $67.50. ISBN 0-8109-3358-6

Gudmundson, Wayne. Testaments in wood : Finnish log structures
at Embarrass, Minnesota. St. Paul: Minnesota Historical Society
Press, 1991. 83 p. $16.95. ISBN 0-87351-268-5

Hermann Hertzberger 1959-1990. Tokyo: A + U, 1991. 247 p. (A +
U April 1991 extra edition) $55.00. ISBN 4-900211-33-8

Hildebrand, Grant. The Wright space : pattern and meaning in
Frank Lioyd Wright's houses. Seattle: Univ. of Washington Press,
1991. 192 p. $55.00, $29.95. ISBN 0-295-97005-7, 0-295-97108-8

Hochstim, Jan. The paintings and sketches of Louis I Kahn. New
York: Rizzoli, 1991. 340 p. ISBN 0-8478-1381-9

Hollein, Hans, et al. Paolo Piva : Design & Architektur. Salzburg:
Residenz Verlag, 1991. 263 p. ISBN 3-7017-0700-6



Jacobs, Michael. Northern Spain @ the road to Santiago de Com-
postela. San Francisco: Chronicle Books, 1991. 150 p. [SBN
0-87701-850-2

Kahler, Gert, ed. Architektur ; Bauen in Stutigart seit 1990. Braun-
schweig: Vieweg, 1991. 269 p. DM68. ISBN 3-528-08723-4

Kostof, Spiro. The city shaped : urban patterns and meanings
through history. Boston: Bulfinch Press, 1991. 352 p. $50.00. ISBN
0-8212-1867-0

Kurokawa, Kisho, Intercultural architecture : the philosophy of
symbiosis. London: Academy Editions, 1991. 208 p. L35.00. ISBN
1-85490-047-1

Lancaster, Clay. Antebellum architecture of Kentucky. Lexington:
Univ. Press of Kentucky, 1991. 338 p. $50.00. ISBN 0-8131-1759-3

Eaws, Bill. Traditional houses of rural France. New York:
Abbeville Press, [991. 160 p. ISBN 1-55859-222-9

Leith, James A. Space and revolution : projects for monuments,
squares and public buildings in France, 1789-1799. Mon-
treal: McGill-Queens Univ. Press, 1991. 363 p. $60.00. ISBN
0-7735-00757-4

Lichtenstein, Claude, ed. Ferdinand Kramer : der Charme des Sys-
tematischen @ Architektur, Einrichtung, Design, Giessen: Anabas
Verlag, 1991. 292 p. (Werkbund-Archiv, Bd. 23) DM78. ISBN
3-87038-163-9

Mackenzie, Dorothy. Design for the environment. New York: Riz-
zoli, 1991. 176 p. ISBN 0-8478-1390-8

Mansbridge, Michael. John Nash : a complete catalogue, New
York: Rizzoli, 1991. 336 p. $75.00. ISBN 0-8478-1308-8

Marrey, Bernard and Marie-Jeanne Dumont. La brigue & Paris.
Paris: Picard/Editions du Pavillon de 1’Arsenal, 1991. 219 p. F240.
ISBN 2-7084-0414-8

McGrew, Patrick. Landmarks of San Francisco. New York: Abrams,
1991. 304 p. $49.50. ISBN 0-8109-3557-0

Meehan, Patrick I. Frank Lloyd Wright remembered. Washington,
D.C.. Preservation Press, National Trust for Historic Preservation,
1991. 254 p. $29.95. ISBN 0-89133-187-3

Minnaert, Jean-Baptiste. Pierre Barbe architectures. Liege: Marda-
ga, 1991. 327 p. ISBN 2-87009-437-X

Moss, Eric Owen. Eric Owen Moss, buildings and projects. New
York: Rizzoli, 1991. ISBN 0-8478-1448-3

Neumeyer, Fritz. The artless word : Mies van der Rohe on the
butlding art / translated by Mark Jarzombek. Cambridge, MA: MIT
Press, 1991. 386 p. $50.00. Trans. of Mies van der Rohe. ISBN
0-262014047-0

Nitschke, Guuter. Gartenarchitektur in Japan : rechter Winkel und
natiirliche Form. Cologne: Taschen, [991. 319 p. DM35(. ISBN
3-8228-0269-7774

Palladio in Alubama : an architectural legacy. Montgomery: Mont-
gomery Museurn of Fine Arts, 1991. 80 p. ISBN 0-89280-029-1

Pinchon, Jean-Frangois. FEdouard Niermans : architecte de la Cafe-
Society. Liege: Mardaga, 1991, 335 p. ISBN 2-87009-411-6

Pollak, Martha D. Turin, 1564-1680 : urban design, military cul-
ture, and the creation of the absolutist capital. Chicago: Univ, of
Chicago Press, 1991. 267 p. ISBN 0-226-67342-1, 0-226-67344-8

Ranzani, Ermanno and Luisa Ravera, eds. Giovanni Michelucei a
Sant’Agostino : disegni per il Teatro di Olbia. Genoa: Sagep, 1991.
103 p. L25000. ISBN 88-7058-386-4

Rem Koolhaas ! conversations with students. Houston: Rice Univer-
sity, School of Architecture, 1991. 80 p. (Architecture at Rice;
1991}

Ritz, Richard E. An architect looks at downtown Portland. Portland,
OR: The Greenhills Press, 1991. 104 p. $19.95. ISBN 0-9629661-1-8

Saboya, Marc. Presse et grehitecture au X1Xe siecle : Cesar Daly et
La Revue Generale de L'Architecture et des travaux publics. Paris:
Picard, 1991. 335 p. F300. ISBN 2-7084-0417-2

Savage, Christine E. New Deal adobe : the Civilian Conservation
Corps and the reconstruction of Mission La Purisima 1934-1942,
Santa Barbara, CA: Fithian Press, 1991. 162 p. $9.95. ISBN
0-931832-75-6

Scully, Vincent Joseph. Architecture : the natural and the man-
made. New York: St. Martin’s Press, 1991, 388 p. $40.00. ISBN
0-312-06292-3

Sharp, Dennis, ed. The illustrated encyclopedia of architects and
architecture. New York: Whitney Library of Design, 1991. 256 p.
$39.95. ISBN 0-8230-2539-X

Snodin, Michael, ed. Karl Friedrich Schinkel : a universal man.
New Haven: Yale Univ. Press in assoc. with the Victoria and Albert
Museum, Londen, 1991. 218 p. $40.00. ISBN 0-300-05165-4,
0-300-05166-2

Sorkin, Michael. Exquisite corpse @ writing on buildings, 1979-
1989. New York: Verso, 1991. 365 p. $34.95. ISBN 0-86091-323-6

Strocka, Volker Michael. Casa del Labirinto (VI 11,8-10). Munich:
Hirmer Verlag, 1991. 143 p. (H#user in Pompeji; Bd. 4) ISBN
3-7774-5130-4

Szabo, Albert and Thomas J. Barfield. Afghanistan : an atlas of in-
digenous domestic architecture. Austin: Univ. of Texas Press, 1991,
264 p. $80.00. ISBN (-292-70419-4

Thomas, George E., ¢t al. Frank Furness : the complete works. New
York: Princeton Architectural Press, 1991. 385 p. $64.95, $39.95.
ISBN 1-878271-04-0, 1-878271-25-3

Tittler, Robert. Architecture and power : the town hall and the En-
glish urban community, c. 1500-1640. New York: Oxford Univ.
Press, 1991. 211 p. ISBN 0-19-820230-X

Van Zuylen, Gabriclle. The gardens of Russell Page. New York:
Stewart, Tabori & Chang, 1991. 255 p. $50.00. ISBN 1-55670-170-5

Vince, John. The country house : how it worked. London: John Mur-
ray, 1991. 143 p. L9.95. ISBN 0-7195-4769-5

Wolter, Bettina-Martine. Deutsche Palastbaukunst 1750-1850 :
Theorie-Entwurf-Baupraxis. Braunschweig: Vieweg, 1991. 211 p.
DM78. ISBN 3-528-08744-7

Wright, Patrick. A journey through the ruins : the last days of Lon-
don. London: Radius, 1991, 294 p. L16.99. ISBN 0-09-173190-9

Yegul, Fikret. Gentlemen of instinct and breeding : architecture at
the American Academy in Rome, 1894-1940. New York: Oxford
Univ. Press, 1991. 242 p. ISBN 0-19-306349-X

Zukowsky, John and Ian Wardropper. Austrian architecture and de-
sign : beyond tradition in the 1990s. Chicago: Art Institute of
Chicagoe, 1991, 160 p. ISBN 3-433-02341-7



ALBUQUERQUE 1992: A BRIEF
ARCHITECTURAL HISTORY OF
NEW MEXICO

Albuquerque is in many respects a par-
ticularly appropriate city in which to hold
the 1992 annual meeting of the Society
of Architectural Historians. The 400th
anniversary of the discovery of America
by Christopher Columbus in 1492 finds
many in the Western Hemisphere less in-
terested in one-sidedly celebrating Eu-
rope’s discovery of the Americas than
engaged in attempts to understand what
has happened since the cultures of two
profoundly different worlds were so irre-
vocably brought together. Albuquerque
and the state of New Mexico, which has
one of the longest, continuous architec-
tural records of habitation in North
America, has also been directly shaped
since the 16th century by the meeting of
Native American and European cultures.
Those attending the annual meeting who
take the time to participate in the tours or
visit the state on their own will find
ample, and eloquent, testimony to what
we are trying to understand in 1992.

The history of architecture in New
Mexico dates back at least to 350 A.D.
when, forsaking cave dwellings, indige-
nous inhabitants of the Southwest first
constructed shallow pit houses with earth
and wood roofs, Labeled “Basket Maker”

by archeologists because of their skill in
weaving fiber baskets, these people be-
longed to the initial phase of a prehistoric
Native American civilization now called
Anasazi, the Navajo word for “ancient
ones.” By 700 A.D., the Basket Maker
had evolved into the second phase of
Anasazi culture, called by the Spanish
term, Pueblo, after the villages that were
and are one of its most characteristic fea-
tures.

The Pueblo world, originally concen-
trated in the Four Corners region where
New Mexico now meets Colorado, Utah,
and Arizona, is divided by archeologists
into five periods. Pueblo I (700-900
A.D.) saw the construction of surface
buildings with horizontal masonry walls
in place of excavated dirt walls; first used
as storage rooms, they graduaily replaced
pit houses as the primary dwellings,
while the pit house became the ceremoni-
al kiva. During Pueblo II (900-1100
A.D.), these surface houses were clus-
tered into linear units of rooms without
any exterior doors or windows: one en-
tered from above, descending by a ladder
through the smoke hole in the roof.
Anasazi culture reached its height at the
time of Pueblo III (1100-1300 A.D.)
when, particularly in the area of Chaco
Canyon, a well-organized agrarian soci-
ety erected geometrically planned, multi-
storied pueblos composed of as many as

Ruins of surface houses, Santa Clara Pueblo.
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800 rooms built of beautifully coursed
ledgestone around monumental plazas
containing one or more “great” kivas.
Pueblo IV, vsvally dated from 1300 A.D.
to the arrival of the Spanish in 1540, was
marked by a widespread dispersal of
people from the Four Corners region to
the Rio Grande Valley, possibly in re-
sponse to a persistent drought. Named
Tiguex by the Spanish after the local
Pueblo language of Tiwa, the area of Al-
buquerque was settled at this time with a
string of villages that ran along the Rio
Grande from south of the present city to
the Coronade State Monument (Kuaua
Pueblo) at Bernallilo to the north; the lv-
ing pucblos of Acoma to the west of Al-
bugquerque and of Taos in northern New
Mexico, as well as the abandoned Sali-
nas pueblos of Quarai, Abo, and Gran
Quivira, were also founded at this time,
Though still characterized by impres-
sively large, multi-storied structures,
Pueblo TV architecture reveals nonethe-
less a decline in masonry techniques
from the standard achieved during
Pueblo III.

The arrival of the Spanish, as the first
in a series of incursions by people of Eu-
ropean origin, was sufficiently cata-
clysmic to distinguish as Pueblo V
(1540-present) the final, historic, and
post-occupation phase of Pueblo culture.
Originally, as can still be seen at Acoma
and Taos, the historic pueblos took shape
as asymmetrical, multi-story room
blocks grouped around several plazas;
since 1900, as can be seen as Isleta
Pueblo south of Albugquerque, the vil-
lages have tended to break down into
single-story, single-family dwellings.
Equally important has been the introduc-
tion, dating back to the Spanish, of win-
dows and doors, which have replaced the
traditional roof openings reached by
ladders.

Lured by the persistent fable of the
seven cities of gold, a small party led by
Friar Marcos de Niza briefly and without
success explored New Mexico in 1539,
A second, well-armed expedition under
Francisco Vasquez de Coronado was
then launched from Mexico in 1540; no
more successful than Friar Marcos at
finding any gold, Coronado’s expedition
did explore large areas of New Mexico,
including much of the Rio Grande Val-
ley, before returning to Mexico in 1542,
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Less happily, this army of some 300
Spaniards accompanied by 800 Indians
forcibly occupied the Tiwa pueblo of Al-
canfor, north of Albuquerque, as winter
quarters in 1540-41; resistance by the
evicted inhabitants provoked a cycle of
bloody retaliation by the Spaniards,
which only ended when the Tiwa tem-
porarily abandoned most of their villages.
Subsequent, equally abortive expeditions
of 1580 and 1590 led finally to Juan de
Ofiate’s successful expedition of colo-
nization in 1598.

Claiming all of New Mexico for Spain
on April 30, 1598, Oiiate established the
settlement of San Gabriel del Yungue,
first at San Juan Pueblo (in the Espafiola
valley north of Santa Fe) and then at an
abandoned pueblo across the Rio Grande.
San Gabriel was itself abandoned when
the new governor, Don Pedro de Peralta,
founded the Villa de Santa Fe in 1610.
This city was laid out according to the
town planning ordinances of the Laws of
the Indies issued in 1573 by Phillip II of
Spain. Based equally on Renaissance
(and Roman) urban theory and on the ex-
perience gained from colonizing the
Americas, the ordinances provided de-
tailed instructions for the creation of new
cities. The result at Santa Fe was a regu-
larly gridded city with a central plaza on
which faced such major institutional
structures as the governor’s palace and

(originally) the cathedral.

Santa Fe has remained the capital of
New Mexico ever since, except for the
brief hiatus in colonial rule that resulted
from the Pueblo revolt of 1680. This re-
volt had two immediate causes: religious
persecution of the Pueblo people by the
Catholic Church; and the encomienda, a
system that granted to Spanish settlers the
right to levy on pueblos a tax of either
labor or goods in exchange for protection
and conversion to Catholicism. Added to
the hardships of intermittent droughts and
Apache raids, these abuses provoked the
simultaneous revolt of all the Pueblo peo-
ples on August 10, 1680, when the mis-
sionaries and colonists were either killed
or driven out. Not until 1692-93 did the
Spaniards reconquer New Mexico and re-
occupy Santa Fe with an army led by the
new provincial governor, Don Diego de
Vargas.

Until the 18th century, the Spanish
presence in New Mexico outside of Santa
Fe was largely restricted to scattered
ranches and to the pueblo missions. Typi-
cally, as can be seen in a ruined state at
Abo and Quarai (1630s) and preserved at
Isleta {1613) and Acoma (1629}, these
missions consist of large, single nave
churches with a flanking convento or res-
idential complex organized around a
cloister courtyard. While Abo and Quarai
use the indigenous technology of ledge-

stone laid in a caliche (clay) mortar, most
missions (including Isleta and, originally,
Acoma) were built with the adobe bricks
of sun-dried clay introduced by the Span-
ish; the nave, almost never wider than 33
feet, is spanned by an earth-covered roof
supported by vigas (beams) on corbels.
Interior lighting comes from small win-
dows placed high on (usually) one side of
the nave as well as — at Abo, Quarai,
and Isleta — from a transverse clerestory
between the lower nave roof and the
higher roof at the east end. Though found
at both Abo and Quarai, transepts were
rare in the mission churches, where in-
stead the nave tends to focus dramatically
on the apse.,

Spanish settlement of New Mexico
took place through land grants, for which
either an individual or a community peti-
tioned the Crown (to which all the land
belonged by virtue of Oiiate’s claim of
1598). Both El Cerro de Chimayd (1730)
and Las Trampas (1751) in northern New
Mexico were established as community
land grants. As at the missions, construc-
tion was adobe with earth and timber
roofs, and Spanish colonial churches like
San José de Gracia de Las Trampas
(1761) exhibit many of the features found
in the mission churches — including
transverse clerestories and the more con-
sistent presence of transepts — though
generally on a smaller scale and without
the convento (sometimes replaced by a
rectory), Wealthy landowners erected ha-
ciendas, houses with a single file of
multi-purpose rooms facing inward to a
central placita, with a second enclosed
space of the corral in back. Much more
common were houses that began as a sin-
gle room, to which other rooms could be
added over time for form a single file, L-,
or U-shaped units; as can still be seen at
El Cerro de Chimayd, several families
could also cooperate to build their houses
as a single fortified village around a cen-
tral plaza (planned according to the Laws
of the Indies).

Albuquerque came into existence as a
villa like Santa Fe. During the 17th cen-
tury, some ten rarnchos were settled in the
area, including an orchard, El Paraje de
Huertas, that was planted in 1632 on the
future site of Albuquerque’s Old Town.
In 1706, Don Francisco Cuervo y Valdez,
the interim governor of New Mexico, au-
thorized the creation of another villa or
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regional center of government in the Rio
Abajo (downriver) area of the Rio
Grande. Cuervo named the new city the
Villa de San Francisco de Alburquerque
after the Spanish viceroy, the duke of Al-
burquerque — since the 19th century, the
city has been known more simply as Al-
buquerque (without the initial “r’). At
first, however, the city existed more in
name than in fact, since it was not until
1779 that a defensible plaza was built
around the church of San Felipe de Neri
(1706). In 1790, this original and very
modest church on the west side of the
plaza collapsed, and was replaced in 1793
by the more monumenta! structure that
stands today on the plaza’s north side.
The 1821 declaration of Mexican inde-
pendence from Spain eliminated the re-
straint of trade with foreign countries that
Spain had imposed on Mexico and its
provinces (including New Mexico) and
permitted the opening of the Santa Fe
Trail from Independence, Missouri, The
architectural changes initiated by the im-
portation of window glass and bricks
were then accelerated when New Mexico
was annexed as a United States Territory
in 1848 as a result of the Mexican War of
1846; along with portable saw mills, the

U.S. Army brought the Greek Revival
style to New Mexico as a politically ap-
propriate expression of the territory’s
Americanization. Such typical details as
brick dentilated cornices, pedimented
door and window frames of sawn boards,
and square columns with schematized
classical bases and capitals were applied
to the local adobe vernacular to produce
the Territorial style; Our Lady of the An-
gels School (1877) just off Albuguerque’s
plaza is a fine example of the idiom. Still
other architectural historicisms were in-
troduced as a result of the transfer during
the 1850s of Catholic authority in New
Mexico from the Mexican Diocese of
Durango to the new Diocese of Santa Fe.
Jean Baptiste Lamy, a French priest and
the new Bishop of Santa Fe, inaugurated
a medievalizing reform of the territory’s
ecclesiastical architecture. The Ro-
manesque-inspired Cathedrai of Saint
Francis in Santa Fe was erected by the ar-
chitect-builders Antoine and Projectus
Mouly between 1869 and 1894, and in
the mid-1860s, the facade of San Felipe
de Neri in Albuquerque was remodeled
with two Gothic Revival towers.

The transformation of New Mexico
from a Spanish province to an American

San José de Gracia de Las Trampas, 1761; Las Trampas.
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territory was confirmed by the construc-
tion of the Atchison, Topeka and Santa
Fe Railroad in 1879-80. Despite its name,
this railroad bypassed Santa Fe (to which
it was connected only by an 18-mile spur)
and chose Albuquerque instead as the lo-
cation for its repair shops (the industrial
sheds built in the 1920s still stand). This
effectively identified Aibuquerque as the
territory’s economic center even as it
turned Santa Fe into a commercial back-
water; it also split Albuquerque’s devel-
opment between the two poles of the His-
panic “Old Town” and the American
“New Town” laid out in a neat grid
alongside the tracks one and a half miles
to the east. Paralleling the arrival of such
recent architectural fashions as the Italian
Revival, the Queen Anne style, and
Richardsonian Romanesque, the railroad
brought cast-iron columns, pressed metal
facades, window frames, and cornices,
corrugated iron roofing, and factory-
made wooden trim and flooring. As New
Mexico progressed toward statehood,
granted in 1912, it increasingly remade
its urban centers in the image of a typi-
cally American “Main Street.”

New Mexico’s Americanization soon
provoked a response from a group of




archeoclogists, artists, and writers who
worried that the state was losing its dis-
tinctive regional character. In 1912, the
newly formed Santa Fe Planning Board
adopted what would become the Spanish
Pueblo Revival style as the standard for
new construction. This was the first step
in a successful campaign to halt the city’s
economic decline by fostering tourism. A
composite style synthesized, as its name
suggests, from elements of the Pueblo
and Spanish Colonial architectures, the
Spanish Pueblo Revival was inaugurated
in 1913 with the restoration by the Muse-
um of New Mexico staff of the portal
{portico) of the Palace of the Governors
{dating to 1610 and rebuilt in 1693) on
the Santa Fe Plaza. The architects Isaac
Hamilton Rapp and William Morris Rapp
codified the style by combining the forms
and details of Spanish mission churches
with those of the pueblos in the Fine Arts
Museum of 1916-17 and La Fonda Hotel
of 1920-21. John Gaw Meem, an engi-
neer and an Easterner who came to New
Mexico in 1920 to be cured of tuberculo-
sis, switched careers to become the state’s
leading architectural practitioner of the
Spanish Pueblo Revival from the 1930s
through the 1950s. Besides playing an in-
strumental role in Santa Fe’s picturesque
retransformation into a seductive if large-
ly fictional image of New Mexico’s past,
Meem shaped the development of the
University of New Mexico campus in Al-
buquerque with such classic statements of
the Spanish Pueblo Revival as Scholes
Hall (1934-36) and Zimmerman Library
(1936-39).

The 20th century has brought more
than tourism to New Mexico. While
Santa Fe became a resort for wealthy
Easterners and Midwesterners, Albu-
querque continued to develop as the
state’s economic and industrial center.
The arrival of the automobile in the
1920s and 1930s encouraged the city’s
linear expansion along such transporta-
tion spines as the north-south running
Fourth Street and the east-west running
Central Avenue. Meeting in downtown
Albuquerque, these streets were respec-
tively integrated with the transcontinental
thoroughfares of the Pan-American High-
way in the 1920s and Route 66 in 1937;
the city’s role as the state’s transportation
hub was confirmed when the Pan-Ameri-
can Highway and Route 66 were suc-
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Church of San Felipe de Neri, 1793 and later; Albuquergue.

ceeded in the mid-1960s by Interstates 25
and 40. Albuquerque again found itself in
the middle during World War II, when
the Manhattan Project moved to Los
Alamos in 1941 to create the atomic
bomb that it first detonated at the Trinity
Site of White Sands in 1945; all men and
materials connected with the project ar-
rived through Albuquerque’s airport.
After the war, the booming military-in-
dustrial complex of Kirtland Air Force
Base and Sandia National Laboratories
(set up during the war) helped to finance
the city’s growth, whose population rose
from 35,449 in 1940 to 331,767 in 1980.
Modernism, banned in Santa Fe by the
Historic Styles Ordinance of 1957, flour-
ished in Albuquerque where a new gener-

LI

ation of architects countered Meem’s “re-

gressive” historicism with such techno-
logically and aesthetically progressive
versions of the International Style as the
Simms Building of 1952 by Flatow,
Moore, Bryan & Fairburn, architects.

The excesses of 1960s urban renewal,
which robbed downtown Albuquerque of
some of its most significant historic
buildings, combined with a growing con-
cern over the rampant suburban develop-
ment of New Mexico’s beautiful yet frag-
ile landscape to provoke Antoine
Predock’s now-famous La Luz housing
estate of 1967-74. Returning to New
Mexico’s regional idiom, Predock mod-
ernized the vernacular of adobe building
by abstracting its cubical forms, by sub-
stituting concrete lintels and canales (gut-
ters) for the traditional wood, and by dra-
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matically opening the interiors to sweep-
ing views through large expanses of
glass. Equally important, the estate’s
clustered plan offered a clear (if, unfortu-
nately, ignored) alternative to the usuval
suburban development by concentrating
the housing into a tightly planned ‘“vil-
lage™ while leaving much of the project’s
500 acres in its natural state. The implica-
tions of Predock’s La Luz have since
been extended by architects like Robert
Peters, who has investigated the possibili-
ties of a climatically responsive passive
solar architecture. Finally, there is the
work of Bart Prince. This great-grandson
of a territorial governor of New Mexico,
and fluent successor to the Organic tradi-
tion of Frank Lloyd Wright and Bruce
Goff, argues in works like his own house
of 1983-84 in Albuquerque that the real
history of architecture is understanding
how humans continuously reinvent their
world to answer and express their present
needs. The same might be said of the his-
tory of New Mexico.
Christopher Mead
1992 SAH Local Chairman

URBAN UPDATE:
PHILADELPHIA

In 1991 historic preservationists across
the country were celebrating the 25th an-
niversary of the passage of the National
Historic Preservation Act that gave feder-
al-level sanction to the preservation of
our historic, architectural, and other cul-
tural resources. It was this federal legisla-
tion that promoted state and local preser-
vation legislation as well. Ironically, it
was in this silver anniversary year that
historic preservation was dealt perhaps its
most devastating legal defeat to date—by
the Pennsylvania Supreme Court.

The unprecedented decision handed
down on July 10, 1991, by the Supreme
Court declared the Philadelphia Historic
Preservation Ordinance unconstitutional,
In the Court’s opinion the designation of
private property as historic without owner
consent is a “taking” under Pennsylvania’s
Constitution. The ramifications of the de-
cision affect not only Philadelphia but
other local governments in Pennsylvania
that have histeric preservation ordinances.

The case involved the designation by
the Philadelphia Historical Commission
of the Boyd Theater in Center City
Philadelphia as an historic landmark. The
Boyd, constructed in 1928, is the last of
the large, downtown movie palaces in
Philadelphia boasting elegant Art Deco
interiors—lobby, corridors and auditori-
um, In 1987, after almost a year of nego-
tiations, the Philadelphia Historical Com-
mission designated the Boyd (now the
Sameric Theater) an historic landmark
over the objections of its owners. During
the appeal process the Sameric Corpora-
tion sold the structure to United Artists
Theater Circuit, Inc. The owners’ appeal
of the designation was dismissed by a
trial court and, subsequently, by the Com-
monwealth Court. At that point, the Unit-
ed Artists’ attorney took the case before
the Pennsylvania Supreme Court.

The Philadelphia Historic Preservation
Ordinance requires that structures “his-
torically certified” need to have proposed
changes reviewed and approved by its
Architectural Committee. This body is
comprised of professional architects, ar-

Courtyard of the Fine Arts Museum, 1916-17, Rapp & Rapp; Santa Fe.
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chitectural historians, and historians and
is assisted by the Commission staff. The
Committee’s recommendations are
passed on to the full Historical Commis-
sion. An appeal process is spelled out in
the ordinance, beginning with the review
board of the city’s licensing agency. The
preservation ordinance addresses the
physical appearance, form and mainte-
nance of a certified structure. It does not
touch upon the possible uses of certified
properties.

In reversing the two lower court deci-
sions, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court
ruled that:

{By] designating the [Boyd] theater

building as historic, over the objections

of the owner, the City of Philadelphia
through its Historical Commission has

“taken” the appellee’s property for

public use without just compensation

in violation of Article I, Section 10 of

the Pennsylvania Constitution.
Article 1, Section 10 states that private
property shall not “be taken or applied to
public use, without authority of law and
without just compensation ...” In its rul-
ing, the Pennsylvania Supreme Court de-
termined that the Philadelphia Historical
Commission “... is forcing the owner of
the property to bear a public burden, os-
tensibly to enhance the quality of life of
the public as a whole.” This decision was
made despite the provision of Article I,
Section 27 of the Pennsylvania Constitu-
tion which states:

The people have a right to clean air,
pure water, and to the preservation of
the natural, scenic, historic and esthetic
values of the environment... As trustee
of these resources, the Commonwealth
shall conserve and maintain them for
the benefit of all the people.

In what is considered a broadly-written
decision, the Court also raised issues of:
the use of police power for aesthetic pur-
poses;! historic designation restricting a
property owner’s uses of land or build-
ings;? the requirement that the owner of a
designated property seek Historical Com-
mission approval for any change to the
structure and to adhere to prescribed
maintenance guidelines;* historic desig-
nation of individual buildings as spot
zoning, an impermissible practice;* and
the process by which buildings are added
to the city’s historic register, believing

that by making the process internal to the
Commission, the Commission is acting
too much as an advocate.

The cumulative impact of the issues
raised by the Court are extremely serious
for the City of Philadelphia and its
13,000 designated historic landmarks,
other local governments in Pennsylvania,
and fearfully, may be precedent-setting
for the nation.

Recourse for the City of Philadelphia

As the Pennsylvania Supreme Court’s
decision was tied to the Pennsylvania
Constitution, the City of Philadelphia and
the Historical Commission were prohibit-
ed from any higher-level appeals, e.g.,
the U.S. Supreme Court. The latter has
consistently ruled in favor of historic
preservation values, most recently in
March 1991. The City’s only recourse
was to petition the Pennsylvania Supreme
Court for an opportunity to reargue the
case.

This request was filed in late July.
However, the general opinion of legal ex-
perts was that there was little likelihood
of the reargument being granted—possi-
bly a ten percent chance. In late August
the Supreme Court did agree to hear a
reargument which subsequently was held
on October 23, 1991. At press time, the
Court has not handed down its decision.

The Historical Commission based its
petition for reargument on four points
raised in the July 10 Supreme Court deci-
sion, These included the substantial body
of federal and state case law that has,
without exception, upheld landmark des-
ignations under similar ordinances; the
legal precedents at the federal and state
levels that establish a basis for a “taking™;
that the determination of a “taking” in the
case of the Boyd Theater is premature
since the appellant had never sought nor
been denied approval for any modifica-
tions to the theater; and that the Philadel-
phia ordinance is a valid exercise of the
police power under Article 1, Section 27
of the Pennsylvania Constitution. In
granting the rehearing, however, the
Court allowed only the second point to be
addressed-—the basis for a taking.

Five amici curiae briefs were filed in
support of the Philadelphia Historical
Commission’s petition. These allies in-
cluded the Pennsylvania Historical and
Museum Commission; the Pennsylvania

League of Cities; the National Trust for
Historic Preservation (including The
Preservation Coalition); the Attorney
General of Pennsylvania; and Congress-
man Thomas F. Foglietta and members of
the Congressional Arts Caucus.

The private sector united to support the
Historical Commission’s petition, also. A
coalition of private-sector interest groups
organized to bring the Supreme Court’s
decision to the attention of the statewide
preservation community. This coalition of
organizations included Preservation
Pennsylvania, the Pennsylvania Histori-
cal and Museum Commission, the Foun-
dation for Architecture, the National
Trust for Historic Preservation Mid-At-
lantic Office, the Philadelphia Historic
Preservation Corporation, and The Pres-
ervation Coalition of Greater Philadel-
phia which hosted a rally in Philadelphia
on August 13th,

The purpose of this rally was to thor-
oughly present the issues and implica-
tions of the case to a statewide con-
stituency of historic preservation and
allied interests. The rally was attended by
an overflow audience, received extensive
media coverage (newspapers, TV, and
radio), and concluded with a march down
Chestnut Street to the Victory Building, a
ca. 1875 Second Empire commercial
structure designed by Henry Fernbach
and currently threatened with demolition
without the protections afforded by the
preservation ordinance.

Immediate Impacts of the Court’s
Decision

The Supreme Court’s decision has cast
a long and deep shadow over the Histori-
cal Commission’s ability to act. Within
four months of the decision, three Ital-
ianate commercial structures designed by
Stephen Buiton and dating from the
1850s, were demolished. The historic
designation of these buildings had been
opposed by their owner, and the Histori-
cal Commission had no recourse but to
grant the demolition request. Another late
nineteenth-century building is to fall to
the wrecking ball as a consortium of in-
terest groups recently lost an appeal to
halt its demolition. At the time the
Supreme Court’s decision was handed
down, five proposed local historic dis-
tricts were pending before the Historical
Commission. The public hearing for the
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first of these districts was scheduled for
mid-August; property owners in several
of the other proposed districts had been
waiting for as many as three years for ap-
proval. Due to the ambiguities in the
Court’s decision, the Commission sus-
pended further actions on these districts
indefinitely and halted reviews of build-
ings within their boundaries. As a result,
an early twentieth-century commercial
structure will be lost also and other struc-
tures abused. The impact of the Supreme
Court decision has been felt not only in
Philadelphia but across the state. At least
two communities have tabled pending
preservation ordinances while several
other governmental agencies have had
legal challenges brought against historic
designations.

The principal theme of the 41st annual
National Historic Preservation Confer-
ence, held in San Francisco this past Oc-
tober, had been to celebrate the array of
preservation accomplishments since the
passage of the 1966 Historic Preservation
Act. Tnstead, almost every speaker
touched upon the “situation in Pennsylva-
nia” while attendees shifted nervously in
their seats. Many of the individual ses-
sions used the Pennsylvania Supreme
Court action as a spring-board for discus-
sion. Nationwide, there is concern that
the “situation in Pennsylvania” may be a
bellweather for as yet unresolved state
and federal court decisions that concern
historic preservation, environmental pro-
tection and urban planning/land use con-
trol issues.

As we said back in the 1960s, “the
times they are a changin’”’; however, in
1992 that phrase has an entirely new
meaning.

Notes

1. The Court ignored the historic and
cultural purposes of historic preservation
ordinances as spelled out in the Pennsyl-
vania constitution.

2. The Philadelphia ordinance does not
restrict or even address issues of use and
does outline a process to demonstrate
why demolition of a certified structure
may be the only practicable solution for
an owner.

3. Philadelphia building and zoning
codes also require administrative ap-
proval or inspection prior to structural
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changes as well as adherence to specified
maintenance codes.

4. In a most unusual stroke of jurispru-
dence, the Court cited the dissenting
opinion in the 1.5, Supreme Court’s de-
cision on Penn Central Transportation
Company v. New York City (1978),
which upheld the landmark designation
of individual historic sites.

Howard I. Kittell

Executive Director

The Preservation Coalition of Greater
Philadelphia

DEATH

The Society expresses its deep regret at
the death of Spiro Kostof, a member
since 1962 and president of the Society
from 1974 to 1976. A professor of archi-
tectural history at the University of Cali-
fornia at Berkeley, Kostof authored many
books, including The Caves of God, The
Architect: Chapters in the History of the
Profession, The Third Rome, and A His-
tory of Architecture: Settings and Rituals.
In addition, he hosted the Public Televi-
sion series, “America by Design,” in
1987. In 1988, he received an Institate
Honor from the American Institute of Ar-
chitects for his teaching and writing. His
two-velume study of urban form, The
City Shaped and The City Assembled, is
to be published in 1992 and 1993,

COURSES

The New York Academy of Art's In-
stitute for the Study of Classical Archi-
tecture is offering a six-week program in
the theory and practice of classical archi-
tecture, to be held at the Academy June
13-July 25, 1992. Aimed at architects, in-
terior designers, historians, historic
preservationists, students, and others who
seck in-depth supplemental training in
classical architecture, the program will
cover such subject areas as the elements
and theory of classical architecture, tradi-
tional construction, interior design and
decoration, and rendering. Further infor-
mation may be obtained from: New York
Academy of Art, 419 Lafayette Street,

New York, N.Y. 10003, (212) 505-5300.

The Pacific Preservation Consortium
(PPC) of the University of Hawaii is of-
fering its Pacific Preservation Field
School to be held July 6-31, 1992 at Ewa
Village and Plantation on the island of
Oahu. This potential National Historic
Landmark complex consists of approxi-
mately three villages with 300 buildings
developed on 41,000 acres purchased in
1877 by Scottish immigrant James
Campbell, 15 miles west of downtown
Honolulu, The field site is situated in the
middle of a massive planned develop-
ment proposed to house 200,000 people,
referred to locally as “Qahu’s Second
City.” The Ewa Village and Plantation
Site offers direct work study and project
concentration in many aspects of the
preservation process: historical research
and documentation; archeology; building
analysis; interpretive planning; landscape
and plant material analysis; financial and
master planning; area preservation, adap-
tive use and historic district practice. The
institute fee is $1550; tuition is $371 for
residents and $731 for non-residents.
Scholarship assistance is available. Ap-
plications, to be postmarked no later than
March 2, 1992, must include: name, ad-
dress, day and evening telephone, a brief
description outlining career aims, any
preservation work-related experience,
and how this field study will contribute to
your educational and career goals; and
names, addresses, and phone numbers of
two faculty or professional associates
who can make critical comments about
your scholastic abilities, motivation, and
ability to work in group situations. For
further information contact: William J.
Murtagh, Director, Pacific Preservation
Consortium, Pacific Preservation Field
School, University of Hawaii at Manoa,
Department of American Studies, 1890
East West Road, Moore Hall 324, Hon-
olulu, Hawaii 96822-2318, (808) 956-
8570; FAX (808) 956-4733.
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QUERY

Information is sought on the work of
Burton Schutt (¢.1904-1952) and Den-
man Scott (1904-1948). Schutt & Scott
were active in the Los Angeles area dur-
ing the 1930s and 1940s and also had
commissions in Hawaii and Dalias. Con-
tact: Peter Flagg Maxson, 4212 Avenue F,
Austin, Texas 78751, (512) 474-1912.

SAH PLACEMENT
SERVICE BULLETIN*

*Dot indicates first listing.

Deadline for submission of material to
the Placement Service Bulletin is the 15th
of the preceding even-numbered month.
Contact the SAH office in Philadeiphia for
full information about the categories and
conditions for inclusion in the fistings.

ACADEMIC

« Tucson, Arizona 85721. University of Arizona,
Department of Art. DEPARTMENT HEAD. Can-
didates will need to be skilled in managing fis-
cal affairs, day-to-day collegial business, con-
duct effective meetings, maintain apen
communications between faculty and adminis-
tration, and expand faculty resources. Candi-
date must alse have an innovative approach to
problem solving and the ability to resclve con-
flicts effactively. In conjunction with the new
Dean, a primary goal will be to develop and im-
plement a Faculty of Fine Arts strategic plan to
incorporate the Department of Art into a
School of Art with separate departimenis. Other
duties include recruiting and sustaining out-
standing faculty, expanding local and national
fundraising opportunities, activating local
human resources to aggressively promote fac-
ulty and student interaction with visiting ex-
perts. The position will require skill in the uti-
lization of University resources and in working
with Gommunity Advisory Boards. University
also encourages nominations from the field.
Apply (with vitag and names, addresses, and

phone numbers of at least four references) to.
Harold Jones, Chair, Department of Art Search
Committee, Office of the Dean of Fine Arts,
University of Arizona, Tucson, AZ 85721.
EEQ/AA Employer.

« New Orleans, Louisiana 70148, University of
New Orleans, Department of Fine Arts. SCULP-
TOR, tenure track position commencing mid-
August, 1992. Salary commensurate with ex-
perience. Duties are to head the area of con-
centration in sculpture, oversee the operation
of the sculpture studio, and teach undergradu-
ate and graduate students. Other departmental
duties associated with a tenure track position
expected. Candidates must hold an MFA degree
or have equivalent experience, minimum of one
year teaching experience at college level, expe-
rignce in organizing/maintaining a sculpture
studio, and experience in all fundamental
sculpture processes. Interest in computer
aided design and fabrication preferred. To
apply, submit brief statement of teaching phi-
losophy, resume, three letters of recommenda-
tion, ten slides of recent work (slides will be re-
turped if a stamped self addressed envelope is
included) to: Doyle Gertjejansen, Chairman,
Sculpture Search Committee, Department of
Fine Arts, University of New Orleans, New Or-
leans, LA 70148, Deadline for submissions is
March 13, 1992. AA/EQE.

= New York, New York 10019. Solow Art and
Architecture Foundation. ARCHITECTURAL
HISTORIAN. Postdoctoral fellowship available
beginning Fall, 1992. Full-time, one-year posi-
tion. Foundation is establishing several pro-
grams, including an architectural prize for ex-
cellence in the design of public use buildings;
an assistance program for the publication of
exemplary writings in art/architectural history;
and development of a collection that will in-
clude architectural drawings. Purpose of the
post-doctoral fellowship is twofold. First is to
facilitate publication of the Fellow's outstand-
ing dissertation on late twentieth-century archi-
tecture, and Foundation will provide general
assistance toward this end; and second pur-
pose is to obtain assistance in the planning and

execution of Foundation programs. Equal em-
phasis is placed on both responsibilities. Gan-
didates must have a Ph.D. in hand by June,
1992, and must be nominated by their doctor-
al-degree departments {one nomination per
department). Preliminary applications should
include a cover letter, resume, precis of disser-
tation, and names of three references; depart-
ment should send letter of nomination under
separate cover. All materials should be sent by
March 20 to: Vicki Porter, Solow Art and Archi-
tecture Foundation, 9 West 57th Street, New
York, NY 10019.

« Marina del Rey, California 90292. The Getty
Conservation Institute. TRAINING PROGRAM
COORDINATOR. The Training Program orga-
nizes short courses, workshops, and profes-
sional meetings and conferences. Program col-
laborates with other institutions in the develop-
ment of these activities, and in the creation of
degree granting conservation training pro-
grams and the production of teaching materi-
als. Coordinator is expected to develop an on-
going international program of activities in
his/her areas of expertise. These activities are
aimed at furthering educatien/training of pro-
fessional conservators, archivists, archaeolo-
gists, cultural property managers, etc. Coordi-
nator is responsible for arganization of training
activities, preparing project proposals, budgets
and reports, and will be under the direction of
Training Program Director. Coordinators are
expected to maintain close professional ties
with the conservation field through meetings,
conferences and publications. Qualifications
should include training in conservation, ar-
chaeology, ethnography, architecture, or muse-
um studies. Advanced arts or science degres,
and a minimum of five years of professional
caonservation work, proven managerial skills,
and experience in teaching or training are re-
quired. Knowledge of foreign languages desir-
able. Must he free to travel frequently. Salary
commensuraie with exp. and qualifications.
Excellent benefits. EOE Apply to: Personnel,
The Getty Conservation Institute, 4503 Glencoe
Avenue, Marina del Rey, CA 90292-8537. FAX
310-821-9409.
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